
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, June 27, 2022 

7:00 p.m. 

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the Acts of 2021, An Act Relative to Extending Certain 
COVID-19 Measures Adopted During the State of Emergency, signed into law on 
June 16, 2021, this meeting will be conducted via remote participation.  No in-
person attendance by members of the public will be permitted. 

To view or listen 

• Live Stream link YouTube:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCRdBrw3HeEAMB_KFKasrgXA

Zoom webinar link: https://town-northborough-ma-us.zoom.us/j/86314118247
• 

When prompted, enter Password 413076

• CATV Government Channels: Verizon Channel 30, Charter Channel 192

• Call 1-646-876-9923
When prompted, enter Meeting ID  863 1411 8247 and Password 413076

For Public Comment 

Public Comment is allowed and encouraged during any agenda item.  To offer 
comments at any time, please use the “raise hand” button in Zoom, or raise  

your hand if in person.  The Chair will recognize you before any  
vote or before the agenda item is otherwise concluded. 

*** Public comment will be limited to 3 minutes per person *** 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCRdBrw3HeEAMB_KFKasrgXA
https://town-northborough-ma-us.zoom.us/j/86314118247


BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, June 27, 2022 

7:00 p.m. 

PUBLIC COMMENT Revised Agenda 

*Approval of June 13, 2022 Meeting Minutes

*Approval of June 16, 2022 Meeting Minutes

7:00 p.m. - PUBLIC HEARING 
To consider an application from G&I IX FORBES WHITNEY 
LLC to amend the existing aboveground storage license for 
premises located at 30 Forbes Road by reducing increasing the  
on-site storage of flammable and combustible liquids, flammable 
gases and flammable solids. 

REPORTS 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Year-End Transfers.

2. Town Administrator Review.

3. ARPA - Discussion on Public Input Session and Next Steps.

4. Goals – Discussion.

5. Any other business to come before the Board.

6. Public Comment



BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
MEETING MINUTES – June 13, 2022 

 
 
 
7:00 p.m. -  Chairman’s Introduction to Remote Meeting 
Chairman Cohen stated that this Open Meeting of the Board of Selectmen was being conducted 
remotely consistent with Governor Baker’s Executive Order of June 16, 2021, an Act Relative to 
Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures Adopted During the State of Emergency and that all 
members of the Board of Selectmen are allowed and encouraged to participate remotely. 
 
Chairman Cohen noted that the Order allows public bodies to meet entirely remotely so long as 
reasonable public access is afforded so that the public can follow along with the deliberations of 
the meeting.  He added that ensuring public access does not ensure public participation unless 
such participation is required by law.  Chairman Cohen noted that this meeting will allow for 
Public Comment.  He indicated the various ways that the public may view or participate in this 
meeting as listed on the posted agenda.   
 
Chairman Cohen confirmed that the following members and persons anticipated on the agenda 
were remotely present and could be heard. 
 
Board of Selectmen   Others 
Mitch Cohen    John Coderre, Town Administrator   
Julianne Hirsh    Rebecca Meekins, Assistant Town Administrator 
Kristen Wixted   David Parenti, Fire Chief 
Jason Perreault    William Lyver, Police Chief 
T. Scott Rogers 
 
Any votes taken this evening will be done by roll call. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – APRIL 25, 2022 MEETING 
Selectman Perreault moved the Board vote to approve the April 25, 2022 meeting minutes as 
submitted; Selectman Hirsh seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “abstain” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MAY 23, 2022 MEETING 
Selectman Perreault moved the Board vote to approve the May 23, 2022 meeting minutes as 
submitted; Selectman Rogers seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Chairman Cohen invited comments from the public.   
 
Lisa Maselli of 13 Maple Street asked if Requests for Proposals are reviewed by the Board of 
Selectmen before they are posted?  She asked if the Board of Selectmen sees monthly reports 
from Department Heads?  She requested a revisit of a department head reporting policy 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 2 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

established on July 18, 2016 relative to the Town Administrator’s evaluation of the Police Chief 
and Fire Chief. 
 
Chairman Cohen responded that answers will be provided to the above questions before the 
Board’s next meeting. 
 
7:00 p.m. - WILLIAM LYVER – POLICE CHIEF 
 
Chief Lyver was present to request that the Board ratify the following appointments.  
 
Appointment of Thomas McDonald as Police Sergeant 
Chief Lyver indicated that last June three officers elected to participate in a promotional process 
that consisted of a written exam, an assessment center, and his review of each officer’s past 
performance evaluations. An outside consulting firm specializing in police promotional testing 
and assessment centers was hired to conduct the testing and assessment center process.  
 
Chief Lyver noted that Officer McDonald is the remaining candidate on the sergeant’s 
promotional list that expires on June 28, 2022. He recommended that he be promoted to Police 
Sergeant effective June 14, 2022.  Officer McDonald is a life-long resident of Northborough and 
has been employed by the department since 2007, first as a full-time dispatcher, and since 2014, 
as a patrol officer. Officer McDonald has been an acting sergeant since May 29, 2022.  
 
Selectman Perreault moved the Board vote to appoint Thomas McDonald as Police Sergeant 
effective June 14, 2022; Selectman Hirsh seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as 
follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
Appointment of Joshua Ferreira as Police Officer 
Chief Lyver requested that the Board appoint Joshua Ferreira’s as Police Officer effective July 5, 
2022. Mr. Ferreira is a 2018 graduate of Saint John’s High School and a 2022 graduate of 
Assumption University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Sociology and Criminology. He has 
worked as a part-time dispatcher with the Douglas Police Department.  Mr. Ferreira is currently 
enrolled in the MPTC Training Academy in Boylston with a start date of July 2022 and an 
anticipated graduation date of January 2023.  
 
Selectman Rogers moved the Board vote to appoint Joshua Ferreira as Police Officer effective 
July 5, 2022; Selectman Wixted seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
 
  



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 3 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

Appointment of Jacob Tondel as Police Officer 
Chief Lyver requested that the Board appoint Jacob Tondel as Police Officer effective July 25, 
2022. Mr. Tondel is a graduate of Assumption University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in 
Criminology.  He has been employed as a public safety officer for the University of 
Massachusetts Harington Hospital. He is currently enrolled in the MPTC Training Academy in 
Randolph with a start date of September 2022 and an anticipated graduation date of February 
2023. He is also on the waitlist for the Boylston MPTC Academy with a start date of July 25.  
 
Selectman Hirsh moved the Board vote to appoint Jacob Tondel as Police Officer effective July 
25, 2022; Selectman Wixted seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
REAPPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL POLICE OFFICERS 
Chief Lyver requested that the Board reappoint James Bruce and Erica Abro as special police 
officers.  Both are helpful to the department and have the necessary training and certifications to 
serve as special police officers.  Special police officer appointments are made on an annual basis 
effective July 1st through June 30th.    
 
Selectman Wixted moved the Board vote to reappoint James Bruce and Erica Abro as a Special 
Police Officers for a one-year period through June 30, 2023; Selectman Hirsh seconded the 
motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
REPORTS 
 
Julianne Hirsh 
- Thanked those who organized and attended the beautiful Memorial Day program.  Extended 

her appreciation to all of the service men and women, as well as the Gold Star families for 
their sacrifices. 

- Reported on the recent meeting of the White Cliffs Committee. 
- Reported on the recent meeting of the Master Plan Implementation Committee. 
- Announced that the Cultural Council will hold their annual Culture Fest on June 18th. 
- Noted that the Sustainable Northborough Group will hold an informational presentation on 

June 14th at the Library about a Northborough resident who made his home carbon neutral. 
- Reminded residents that the ARPA Input Session will be held on June 16th.  
 
Kristen Wixted 
- Reported on several Central Massachusetts Regional Planning Commission webinars that she 

attended regarding the environment and sustainability. 
- Provided information on the annual Summer Concert Series sponsored by the Community 

Affairs Committee at the Ellsworth McAfee Park. 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 4 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

- Thanked everyone who has applied to serve on Boards and Committees.  Noted that the 
Cultural Council currently has openings.  

- Read an excerpt from a poem by an Algonquin Regional High School graduate. 
- Asked if the Board can review and update the Board and Committee application.  Chairman 

Cohen responded in the affirmative.    
 

Jason Perreault 
- Extended his appreciation to everyone who planned, organized and participated in the 

Memorial Day program. 
 

T. Scott Rogers 
- Echoed the sentiments regarding the Memorial Day program.  Enjoyed speaking on behalf of 

the Board. 
- Requested that the Fire Chief provide guidance to residents regarding the need for proper 

working smoke detectors. 
- Requested that the Police Chief provide information on the Police Department’s Project 

Child Safe program and his plan to address gun safety at the Be Well Kick-Off event at the 
Ellsworth McAfee Park on June 22nd. 

- Encouraged residents to attend the Be Well Kick-Off event on June 22nd. 
- Thanked the Health Director and supporting staff for the recent vaccination clinic at the 

Senior Center. 
- Noted that information regarding the upcoming ARPA Input Session can be found on the 

Town website under Town News. 
- Noted the receipt of emails regarding the following topics:  needed repairs to the White Cliffs 

chimney; reports of truck traffic and traffic violations; planning professional development 
days for the schools on the days that Town Elections are held; the interview process for the 
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Belonging Committee; and ARPA funding. 
 

Mitch Cohen 
- Echoed the sentiments regarding the Memorial Day program and thanked Selectman Rogers 

for speaking on behalf of the Board. 
- Announced that the newly renovated Assabet Park has reopened.  Thanked everyone who 

coordinated the renovations and those who planned the Reopening event. 
- Attended an event against gun violence that was held at the Town Common.  Thanked the 

youth members of the community who coordinated this event. 
- Noted receipt of emails on the following topics:  ARPA funding; traffic concerns; mosquito 

spraying; location of Town Elections and Board of Selectmen Meetings; and questions and 
comments regarding the Board and Committee appointment process. 

- Encouraged residents to participate in the ARPA Input Session on June 16th. 
- Attended the Northborough Art Guild’s Art Show at the Historical Society.  Noted that the 

Northborough Art Guild is looking for new members. 
- Wished everyone a Happy Flag Day on June 14th. 
 
  



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 5 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR APPOINTMENTS TO THE SCHOLARSHIP 
COMMITTEE, COUNCIL ON AGING AND BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
Selectman Hirsh moved the Board vote to appoint Fran Bakstran to the Council on Aging for a 
three-year term as recommended by the Interview Committee; Selectman Wixted seconded the 
motion.  It was noted that the Council on Aging has two openings and that Ms. Bakstran is an 
extremely qualified candidate.  The roll call was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
Selectman Wixted moved the Board vote to appoint Jocelyn McElhiney to the Board of Library 
Trustees for a two-year term as recommended by the Interview Committee; Selectman Hirsh 
seconded the motion.  It was noted that Ms. McElhiney has previously served on the Board of 
Library Trustees and is an extremely qualified candidate.  The roll call was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
Selectman Hirsh moved the Board vote to appoint Bethany Tsamis to the Board of Library 
Trustees for a three-year term as recommended by the Interview Committee; Selectman Rogers  
seconded the motion.  It was noted that Ms. Tsamis is also extremely qualified as she has years 
of professional experience working with libraries.  The roll call was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
Selectman Wixted moved the Board vote to appoint Chandra Vora to the Scholarship Committee 
for a two-year term as recommended by the Interview Committee; Selectman Hirsh seconded the 
motion; the roll call was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
Selectman Hirsh moved the Board vote to appoint Christina Renzullo to the Scholarship 
Committee for a three-year term as recommended by the Interview Committee; Selectman 
Rogers seconded the motion; the roll call was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 6 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF FY2022 NEDP MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Mr. Coderre noted that the Northborough Extended Day Program provides aftercare 
programming  for the K-8 schools.  He informed the Board that the annual Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the Town and Northborough Extended Day Program, Inc. is for 
the continued use of office space and facilities at the Town Hall.   This updated MOA provides 
for a 3.5% increase in payment to the Town from $25,748 in FY2022 to $26,650 in FY2023 to 
reflect increased costs associated with use of the space, as well as the shared Administrative 
Assistant position.   
 
Selectman Rogers moved the Board vote to approve the FY2023 annual Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Town and Northborough Extended Day Program, Inc. for the use of 
office space and facilities at the Town Hall and to authorize the Town Administrator to execute 
same; Selectman Hirsh seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
DISCUSSION REGARDING TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REVIEW AND GOALS 
Chairman Cohen stated that Mr. Coderre has suggested that the Board perform his annual review 
prior to the end of June.  He added that this is the year that his contract is up for renewal.  He and 
Mr. Coderre also discussed setting goals annually, which will then become part of the annual 
review process.  Both the Board and Mr. Coderre will agree to goal items, which will be 
discussed several times throughout the year. 
 
Mr. Coderre recommended a formal GFOA Strategic Plan as one goal and explained why this is 
an important goal at this time.  To assist with the Board’s evaluation, Mr. Coderre provided the 
Board documentation detailing some of his more significant accomplishments.   
 
Chairman Cohen suggested that goal items be outside of the normal course of business, and  
should include unique items that the Board sees as priorities.  Selectman Perreault added that one 
of the existing annual goals is to manage the budget process within the confines of Proposition 
1½, which should remain a top priority.    
 
Board members agreed to complete Mr. Coderre’s evaluation in time for the June 27th meeting.  
In the meantime, Chairman Cohen will share an MMA webinar link that focuses on evaluations 
and goal setting.  Board members will use the current evaluation form for this year’s review with 
the expectation that the review process and evaluation form will be revisited and updated as 
appropriate in time for next year’s evaluation.  Chairman Cohen asked that Board members 
email only him their evaluation forms by Monday, June 20th.  He will then compile them and 
prepare the evaluation for the June 27th meeting.  He will schedule the first discussion on the 
process of goal setting for the June 27th meeting as well and asked Board members to consider 
presenting between 3 to 5 goals for discussion purposes. 
 
DISCUSSION REGARDING PUBLIC COMMENT AND PACKET AVAILABILITY 
Chairman Cohen suggested making a change to context-specific Public Comment where the 
initial Public Comment agenda item would be for topics not listed on the agenda, such as 
suggestions for future discussions.  During any agenda item, members of the public would be 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 7 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

able to offer more informed public comments following any presentations and discussions and  
before a Board vote is concluded.  The posted agenda will include notification that public 
comment will be allowed during all agenda items.  Board members supported the idea of making 
this change to public comment. 
 
The Board discussed placing the meeting packet on the Town website at the same time it is 
provided to Board members.  If there is an executive session, Board members will receive two 
separate emails – one containing the public meeting packet and another containing the executive 
session meeting packet. 
 
EXECUTION OF CEMETERY DEEDS 1149 & 1150 
Selectman Perreault moved the Board vote to execute Cemetery Deeds 1149 & 1150; Selectman 
Wixted seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Selectman Hirsh moved the Board vote to adjourn, Selectman Perreault seconded the motion; the 
roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Perreault “aye”  Hirsh  “aye” 
Rogers “aye”  Cohen  “aye” 
Wixted “aye” 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Diane M. Wackell 
Executive Assistant to the 
  Board of Selectmen 

 
Documents used during meeting: 
1. June 13, 2022 Meeting Agenda 
2. April 25, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
3. May 23, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
4. Memorandum – Appointment of Police Sergeant and Officers 
5. Memorandum – Reappointment of Special Police Officers 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 8 June 13, 2022 

6. Information Packet – Board & Committee Appointments
7. Information Packet – Renewal of NEDP MOU
8. Information Packet – Town Administrator Review and Goals
9. Memorandum – Public Comment and Packet Availability
10. Cemetery Deeds

RETURN TO AGENDA



BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
MEETING MINUTES – June 16, 2022 

 
 
 
6:30 p.m. -  Chairman’s Introduction to Community Listening Session 
Chairman Cohen welcomed the public to the Community Listening Session to discuss how 
Northborough’s American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) fund could be used.  This Listening Session 
is an opportunity for residents, businesses, non-profits, and other constituents to provide input to 
the Board of Selectmen as to how Northborough could allocate its share of ARPA funding.  
 
Chairman Cohen stated that this meeting will be conducted in person and via remote 
participation.  He indicated the various ways that the public may view or participate in this 
meeting as listed on the posted agenda.  Following a brief introduction to the meeting, Chairman 
Cohen noted that the ARPA email (ARPAinput@town.northborough.ma.us) for ideas and 
suggestions will continue to be on the Town website following tonight’s meeting. 
 
Sherry Clark  
As a member of the Youth Commission, she requested that the part-time position in the Family 
& Youth Services Department be changed to a full-time position.  She acknowledged the 
department’s investment to offer counseling through Interface, but added that case management 
for the families in our community that are dealing with their own or a loved one’s mental health 
cannot be outsourced.   
 
Liz Nasser 
Noted that she is a Dementia Specialist and the best way to prevent dementia is to stay physically 
active and stay socially connected.  She shared her ideas with the benefits of providing some 
structured physically active group programs for both the youth and elderly in our community.   
 
Jeanne Cahill 
Advocated for the need to address the crisis of climate change and its effect on the kids in our 
community.  She requested that ARPA funds be used toward achieving the maximal greenhouse 
gas reductions in our public buildings vehicles and operations, solar arrays on school and other 
municipal rooftops, geothermal heating in the new Fire Station, deployment of air source heat 
pumps for municipal building heat and cooling replacements, vehicle replacements with high 
efficiency electric cars and trucks, and charging stations that serve municipal vehicles and public 
parking lots. 
 
Marilee Borden – 63 Little Pond Road 
As an owner of a small business in Town, she noted that small local businesses would really 
benefit from having a Town Economic Development Committee.  Such a Committee could also 
be helpful in determining what types of businesses would benefit the Town.  She would like to 
see that the downtown revitalization project help attract people to our Town to enjoy and benefit 
the Town’s small businesses.   
 
Karen Chapman 
As president of the Corridor 9/495 Regional Chamber of Commerce, she shared that the 
downtown revitalization efforts provide a great opportunity to support the small business 
community.  She asked that small businesses be invited to talk about opportunities where the 
Town and the Chamber of Commerce can help them be more successful through a long-term 
plan. 
 

mailto:ARPAinput@town.northborough.ma.us


Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 2 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

Kerri Martinek 
Requested that some ARPA funds be put aside as a kick starter fund to allow for the Master Plan 
Implementation Committee to begin making small improvements without having to go through a 
long process for funding opportunities.  For example, conduct an analysis of downtown traffic 
flow, look at alternate routes, overhaul streets lamps, bury electric lines, connect downtown 
sidewalks, and general beautification plantings.  Ms. Martinek suggested small grants that can 
fund some of the needs of small businesses that are struggling, and can no longer afford 
landscaping or other beautification efforts.  Ms. Martinek asked that the schools provide 
coaching and/or programs for those kids that are suffering with their mental health.  She 
suggested electronic clickers for Town Meeting.  She also suggested hiring a consultant to help 
the Board of Selectmen assess all of the needs and determine the best use of the ARPA funds. 
 
Martha Michalewich 
Ms. Michalewich noted that in June of 2020, Community Meals starting serving meals curbside 
to 39 people.  They are now serving between 100-130 meals every Wednesday.  She explained 
how the program works, adding that up until know, the program has been fully funded by the 
generosity of the community.  She anticipates that the current funds will keep the program 
running through September and requested that ARPA funds be set aside to help sustain this 
important program through the next year. 
 
Gib Chase – 6 Kimball Lane Juniper 
Requested that ARPA funds be used towards maximizing the use of the Senior Center, including 
hiring help to bring back programs for dementia, the Tuesday Night Bistro and help at the front 
desk.  He requested that ARPA funds also be used for road improvements and maintenance.  He 
added that affordable housing is needed for those living on fixed incomes who were struggling 
with inflation even before the pandemic.  He would like to see more community based programs 
as well. 
 
Sherry Clark 
Questioned if there would be an opportunity for Town Departments to express their needs to the 
Board of Selectmen?  Chairman Cohen responded that it is best for Town staff to express their 
needs to the Town Administrator.  The best way for members of Boards or Committees to get in 
touch with the Board of Selectmen is through their Selectmen assigned liaison or by reaching out 
through the ARPA email address on the Town website. 
 
Rich Ferenchick – 205 Crawford Street 
As president of the Northborough Historical Society, he requested ARPA funds to help recover 
expenditures for having to rent facilities for their programs during the time that the Historical 
Society couldn’t comply with the limited capacity regulations due to Covid.  He noted that they 
also lost monthly income from community groups that would rent the facility for community 
based meetings.  He added that the community has missed out on a lot of programs offered by 
the Historical Society during the pandemic.  The Society will follow up with the Board of 
Selectmen by creating a list of what they think are legitimate expenses that need to be recovered. 
 
Alexis from Brilla Coffee 
Mr. ??? stated that his business is located at 17 West Main Street.  He asked that the walkability 
be improved to increase foot traffic to all the small businesses located in the downtown area.  He 
indicated that small businesses would also benefit from new signs and outdoor seating.  He 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 3 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

added how important it is for small businesses to attract customers not only from the community, 
but also from outside Northborough as well.  He also asked that the Food Pantry reach out to him 
so that he can help out with coffee needs. 
 
Erica Zieger 
Noted that she would like to see that a teen empowerment center be located in a central location 
with walkability for ages ranging anywhere from 12 – 21.  The center could provide sports and 
physically activities, a resume writing program, homework help, general mental health 
counseling, and financial management.  She stressed that the physical activity aspect is 
important. 
 
Joan Clementi – 30 Thaddeus Mason Road 
As a 28-year member of the Youth Commission, she is focused on the rise in Town of mental 
health issues.  She requested that ARPA funds be used to support a full-time position in the 
Family & Youth Services Department.  She also requested that ARPA funds be allocated to the 
Family & Youth Services Department to support programming that could prevent some mental 
health issues from happening in the first place.  Lastly, requested that ARPA funds be used to 
house the 8 homeless families in Town in a local motel for a short-term period.   
 
Bryce McNight – 9 Longfellow Road 
Expressed the need for individuals to have a safe place to express themselves that involves group 
opportunities for peers to talk about their challenges.  Requested that a community culture and 
arts center for both group programs and physical activities be housed in one of the vacant town-
owned properties, such as the existing Fire Station which is located downtown and could provide 
for walkability opportunities.  He added that this could include rented studio space for generating 
revenue and open spaces for individuals or community groups to hold community events. 
 
Bill Pierce 
After listening to what the groups needs are this evening, he thinks it is important to look at 
addressing these needs in the long-term.  For example, a $1.5M to $2M investment in solar 
panels could potentially create $250,000 - $300,000 in savings, which could then be used to fund 
these community programs on a long-term basis.   
 
Mike Duchamo 
As Vice President of the Northborough Historical Society he stated that they are hoping to make 
some investments to their meeting spaces to make it a more attractive facility for teens and other 
community groups to use for some of the needs discussed this evening.  He asked if there will be 
an ARPA application to request funds?  Chairman Cohen responded that the Board has not yet 
discussed a specific process.  He suggested that in the meantime, the Historical Society put 
together a rough estimate and send to the ARPA email on the Town website.   
 
George Brenckle – 3 Little Pond Road 
As a member of the Appropriations Committee, he agrees that all of the ideas expressed both this 
evening and in the public forum session at the Trinity Church are extremely valuable.  He 
cautioned that $4M sounds like a lot of money, but Northborough’s Budget is at $70M each year.  
He stated that trying to keep level services from year to year can increase the budget by $2M.  
He added that during the pandemic, the Town postponed capital projects, dipped into the 
contingency fund and stopped making payments on long-term liabilities and the Town is now in 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 4 June 13, 2022 
 
 

 

the process of making up for those decisions.  This $4M should not be treated as separate funds 
for a separate list of priorities.   He stated that the expressed needs and ideas should be 
incorporated into the Town’s priorities as a whole for the long-term and not separate for things 
that may not be sustainable. 
 
Susan Sartori – 465 Green Street 
Agreed that there are a lot of things that the Town needs to focus on, especially mental health 
and food insecurity.  These are huge issues that should be incorporated into the operating budgets 
long-term.  She is worried that we are heading into a recession and the budgeting process for the 
next few years is going to be challenging.  She added that there is something to be gained if the 
Town purchases needed capital items now, without having to pay higher interest rates at a later 
time. 
 
Sandra Scott – Youth Commission Chair 
Reiterated the need to change the part-time position in the Family & Youth Services to full-time, 
especially with the increased need to address social services and mental health. 
 
Kelly Gannet – 69 North Gate Road 
On behalf of the Northborough School Committee requested ARPA funds for the needed short-
term repairs to the Proctor Elementary School roof as they await to hear if the project is accepted 
into the Massachusetts School Building Authority’s (MSBA) accelerated repair program.  The 
School Committee is also requesting funding for the portion of the roof not covered by the 
reimbursement.  Mr. Coderre added that he is working with the School Superintendent and the 
Facilities Manager to meet with roofers to see what can potentially be done to buy enough time 
to get through the MSBA process.  This could potentially save the Town $900,000. 
 
Dan Martin – 132 Brewer Street 
Noted that he is a Firefighter in a neighboring community.  He stated that he supports the request 
to purchase a new Rescue 1 Fire apparatus, considering that the current one has very much 
reached its lifespan.  He also works in the fire apparatus industry and has seen price increases of 
10% over the last 18 months.  He would also like to see that other capital purchases, such as 
police vehicles and the new Fire Station be considered as well. 
 
Danielle Williams – 19 Assabet Hill Circle 
Referred to an earlier email that she had sent to the Board regarding the need make 
improvements to the intersection of Rt. 20 and Lincoln Street, which has been a safety concern 
for many years. It is extremely busy with traffic both automotive and pedestrian and bisects the 
neighborhoods feeding both Lincoln Street Elementary and Melican Middle schools with their 
~750 combined students.   
 
After confirming receipt of Ms. Williams’ email, Chairman Cohen stated that the Board is in 
receipt of 14 or so emails which will be equally be considered in addition to the requests heard 
this evening. 
 
 
  



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 5 June 13, 2022 

Gib Chase – 6 Kimball Lane Juniper 
Mr. Chase asked what the next steps would be?  Chairman Cohen explained that the Board will 
start working on the large volume of information received and will discuss the next steps moving 
forward during subsequent Selectmen’s meetings.   

In conclusion, residents were encouraged to continue to participate in future Selectmen’s 
Meetings and to email their ideas and concerns or any follow up to the ARPA email located on 
the Town website – ARPAinput@town.northborough.ma.us. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Selectman Rogers moved the Board vote to adjourn, Selectman Hirsh seconded the motion; all 
members voted in favor to adjourn. 

The meeting adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Diane M. Wackell 
Executive Assistant to the 
  Board of Selectmen 

Documents used during meeting: 
1. June 16, 2022 Meeting Agenda

RETURN TO AGENDA

mailto:ARPAinput@town.northborough.ma.us


NORTHBOROUGH FIRE 
DEPARTMENT 

David Parenti, Fire Chief 
11 Pierce Street 

Northborough MA 01532 
508-393-1537 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Selectman 

FROM: Chief Parenti 

RE: Aspen Aerogel License Update 

DATE:  June 24, 2022  

Aspen Aerogel’s license application was reviewed and found to be within legal limits 
for the property.  The company is expanding existing operations which requires the 
increase in the chemical limits on the existing license.  Aspen Aerogel’s has been a 
company in good standing maintaining their permits annually and the Fire 
Department has no reservations about allowing this increase in their license 
application. 



TOWN OF  NORTHBOROUGH 
Town Offices 

63 Main Street 
Northborough, MA 01532-1994 

(508) 393-5040 Phone
(508) 393-6996 Fax

TOWN OF NORTHBOROUGH 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 148, Section 13, notice is hereby given 

that the Board of Selectmen will hold a remote public hearing on Monday, June 27, 2022 

at 7:00 p.m. to consider the application of G&I IX FORBES WHITNEY LLC to amend 

the existing aboveground storage license for premises located at 30 Forbes Road by 

increasing the on-site storage of flammable liquids from 880 gallons to 2,000 gallons; 

combustible liquids from 380 gallons to 500 gallons; flammable gases from 390 cubic 

feet to 2,000 cubic feet with the addition of 11 lbs. of flammable solids all to be stored in 

specified storage rooms and other approved storage containers.   

Pursuant to Governor Baker’s Executive Order of June 16, 2021, an Act Relative to 

Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures Adopted During the State of Emergency this 

meeting of the Northborough Board of Selectmen will be conducted via remote 

participation to the greatest extent possible.  

To join the Public Hearing 

URL link:  https://town-northborough-ma-us.zoom.us/j/86314118247  Passcode: 413076 
Join by phone: 1 646 876 9923 / Webinar ID: 863 1411 8247 / Passcode: 413076 

Kristen Wixted, Clerk 
Northborough Board of Selectmen 

June 17, 2022 

cc: Worcester Telegram & Gazette 
Abutters 

https://town-northborough-ma-us.zoom.us/j/86314118247


































RETURN TO AGENDA















RETURN TO AGENDA



Memo 
Date: June 23, 2022


To: Board of Selectmen


From: Mitch Cohen, Chair


Subject: June 27 meeting preparation


A few thoughts on our upcoming meeting…


Town Administrator Review: We need to approve our combined review.  I hope I’ve included 
everyone’s comments fairly.  If I missed anything, please let me know before our meeting. We 
can discuss the details as a group if anyone prefers.  I suggest that members with constructive 
feedback meet directly with John.


ARPA: We’ll discuss the Public Input Session and determine our next steps.  Are there other 
avenues for input?  Should we close the ARPA Input email address, or leave it open until we’ve 
taken action and/or committed the funds?  Who is consolidating the data?


Goals: Please bring an idea or two for discussion.  I’d like to approve a set of goals at either 
our July or August meeting.


This will be our first meeting with context-specific Public Comment.  We’ve added this to the 
agenda cover page, which I’ll make note of as we start our meeting:


Public Comment is allowed and encouraged during any agenda item. To offer 
comments at any time, please use the “raise hand” button in Zoom, or raise your 
hand if in person. The Chair will recognize you before any vote or before the 
agenda item is otherwise concluded.


See you Monday! 



Northborough Board of Selectmen

Town Administrator Review - Consolidated Comments

Assembled by Mitch Cohen, Chair

June 22, 2022


1. Financial Management

Consistently excellent in the strategic planning, management, preparation, and communication 
of operating and capital budgets.


Synthesizes the details from the finance staff and provides excellent coordination between 
department and across the financial planning and appropriation committees.


Financial trend monitoring provides consistent framing to evaluate financial health and 
documented policies, and drives consensus of actions.


The proposed budgets are usually presented as final documents, not for discussion or input.


The budgets are organized and sensible, but it is important to know, for example, how the 
individual department budgets are determined.


The Selectmen do not receive financial information on a monthly or quarterly basis, such as 
budget updates, purchases and projects completed or tax collections.


Consistently and conservatively plans and executes municipal operating and capital budgets 
that reflect best practices in municipal finance, are annually sustainable, and provide high 
quality services to the Town. 


Often faced with, and unfailingly finds solutions to, challenges that threaten the stability or 
sustainability of the operating budget. One example this year is arranging the joint procurement 
with Algonquin Regional High School and the Town of Southborough for cost-effective and 
minimal increase in health insurance, after the prior health insurance provider withdrew from 
the market. 


Sustained excellence in financial management as exemplified by multiple consecutive years 
winning the GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award; multiple consecutive years of 
clean annual audits with no material defects or weaknesses; bond rating of Aa1, highest in the 
Town's history. Highly sought after by municipal, state, and academic organizations to provide 
training in best practices for municipal financial management. 


Finance and Budgets are a strength for John. He is very comfortable with numbers, 
spreadsheets, and he explains complex financial information in an easy-to-follow manner. 

2. Personnel Management

I have not seen consistent evidence that all department heads feel equally supported. This is 
an area I feel he could improve.  

I have seen a culture of politeness at town hall where people come across as reticent to speak 
up. I think this is another area where John could communicate to his staff that their ideas and 
concerns are important to him.  

Page  of 1 6



Retention is something I think we could have more to say about at a future review, if we 
employed a tool such as anonymous employee evaluations of the TA and asst. TA, and exit 
interviews that were shared with the BoS. 


Sets very high expectations with his own example of diligence, dedication, persistence to get 
the job done, quality of work, and accountability. 


The effects of the Covid-19 pandemic required continued action from Town staff, notably to 
organize and manage the regional health partnership, to conduct vaccination clinics, and to 
manage and account for expenditures of grant funding. The capable and willing response by 
Town staff to meet the exceptional demands reflects well on John’s ability to motivate them. 


Consistently effective with in-cycle and out-of-cycle collective bargaining negotiations to reach 
agreements for fair and sustainable compensation and benefit levels. Negotiates from a 
foundation of objective data concerning economic climate, market competition, and 
compensation commensurate with experience and ability. 


Lack of exit interviews, reviews from staff or department heads, and lacking the ability to talk to 
town staff is problematic.


Communication is less than desirable as evidenced when new staff is hired we are neither 
informed nor introduced.


Consistently excellent on the management of personnel, including the recruitment of Assistant 
Town Administrator, Health Director, Library Director, Collector, and Principal Assessor.  John 
has assembled and filled staffing gaps in time to address both pandemic health needs, 
conduct classification and compensation study, and negotiate with collecting bargaining 
unions.


3. Board of Selectmen Support/Relations

I do not think that the Town Administrator provides us with enough information about topics 
that we have to make decisions about.


I’d like to hear more information (pro and con) about topics.


Packets are often late which leaves little time to prepare.


Some important information is not provided to the Board, such as vandalism of White Cliffs.


We are not introduced to new key staff.


Consistently excellent in the preparation, explanation, analysis, and execution of policies and 
procedures.  All materials and analysis are framed for efficient review by the Board.


Some projects and routine tasks were appropriately deferred in light of pandemic and higher 
priorities.


Page  of 2 6



Excellent quality here. However, at meetings when speaking, John could work on saying things 
once rather than repeating himself. Checking in with his listeners (the board, generally) and 
asking if we have questions before he assumes we didn't get it the first time and repeats the 
information would be great!  

Directives frequently come from the Town Administrator and not from us, the Board. 

When there is an emergency situation in town, John keeps us well informed.  

There have, however, been situations (utility poles, for instance) where John has known about 
something the board will have to discuss and vote on by a certain date, and he has a several 
week long heads up and we only find out a couple of days before a required vote. This seems 
to be a simple thing to fix.  

Acts promptly pursuant to Board decisions. Consistently responds to Board questions and 
requests no later than the next scheduled Board meeting, often sooner. 


Keeps the Board informed about developments or issues as they arise relating to public safety, 
public works, town operations, schools, municipal projects, ongoing litigation, community 
events, regional and state initiatives and actions, grant opportunities. 


4. Personal Characteristics

Highly motivated, hard-working, tireless. Works long hours in excess of what is reasonably 
expected, even for what is acknowledged to be a demanding role. Persistent sustained effort 
to get the job done and do it well. 


High capacity to multitask and manage many ongoing efforts and issues; in command of the 
complexities and details of each. Thorough and complete data gathering and analysis. Quick to 
grasp the essential elements of an issue. 


Copes extraordinarily well with high stress situations and unexpected developments. 
Unwavering focus on identifying and implementing solutions. 


Projects a positive image, certainly in certain groups. I would love to see John at more cultural 
events as well as sports and veterans' events.  

John handled pandemic problems very well. So as far as huge "unforeseen problems" I give 
him a high score. Small surprises seem to annoy him visibly sometimes, which he could work 
on.  

Creativity and inventiveness are the areas where I see the most possibility for improvement. 

New ideas tend to bo met with reticence and I think the town would benefit greatly from more 
flexibility and creativity from town hall. Often he says "We can't do that" and then soon after it 
turns out it can be done, and it's not as hard as he thought.  

He should give himself more credit for being able to accommodate requests. 

Consistently excellent in professional and adaptable characteristics.  John’s adherence to and 
advocacy of management principles provides the strong foundation upon which he can 
navigate change and unexpected circumstances.


Page  of 3 6



All the stress is fatiguing, and the hope is that reduced pandemic demands allow for some 
recharge of energy before the next (assumed financial) stressor.


There is no doubt that Covid was an unexpected stressor for all towns and cities.


The Board was not given information on projects that were delayed due to the pandemic.  
There is now a lot to catch up on.


5. Communication & Relationships

Communications is great with some boards, while could improve with others.

Responsiveness depends on the issue. If it's a quick question, he's great. If it's an idea, or a 
new way to tackle an old problem, he is usually not interested in hearing it.  

He seems to have trouble getting along with people running some of the other towns and cities 
nearby.  

Maintaining effective communications with state and federal officials seems to be something 
John is comfortable with and relatively good at. 

Articulate in spoken and written communications. Information is well organized and clearly 
presented. Very effective speaker in all public venues and to all audiences. 


Excellent coordination with state legislative representatives, state agencies, Town staff and 
board members, and affected citizens on various issues such as legislative priorities; 
participation in grant programs; state guidance, policies, and protocols re Covid-19; and the 
like. 


Strives to constructively and responsively assist citizens and groups who are often well- 
meaning or have a legitimate concern, but who are sometimes incompletely informed, 
unaccepting of the constraints that bear upon their situation.


I think it is important for the Town Administrator to let us know when he is speaking to state 
agencies and legislators, and what he is communicating.


Some of my information comes from people in other towns who know more than we have been 
told.  


It is important to be part of conversations with large businesses like Amazon to understand 
these relationships.


Consistently excellent in the communications and relations with internal and external partners.


John has built trust amongst the departments, boards, committees and commissions, along 
with Northborough, Regional and Assabet Valley Schools, to build unified management and 
financial policies.


There is a small group of citizen activists that remain unsatisfied, but that is probably a 
situation that cannot be resolved.


Page  of 4 6



Overall 

Comments 

John is consistently excellent in his professionalism and actions.  Northborough is recognized 
state-wide for our financial polices and process, and municipal professionals receive the 
benefit of his instruction.


John is a conscientious steward of Northborough’s resources and has provided another year of 
stability and progress during difficult times.


John's performance, given the lean staffing and enormous workload, continues to be 
exemplary and surpass reasonable expectations. His track record is one of delivering excellent 
value for the taxpayer dollar. The endlessly long, exhausting hours – days, nights, weekends – 
go unseen and unappreciated by the general public, but speaking as a Selectman who is 
witnessing it, I can say that there isn’t any more we can ask of John beyond all that he is 
already doing. 


John has a lot of excellent qualities and he’s done a lot of good things for the town.


He’s friendly and curious about people. He can manage a budget like nobody’s business.


There is a certain hubris around his leadership, though, an atmosphere like he and his ideas 
should not be questioned. Residents and staff I have spoken to seem uncomfortable talking 
about him lest anything they say get back to John. This is not a productive management style 
and perhaps, if everyone’s been afraid to tell him this is the case, he doesn’t realize it.


He is so comfortable with the budget process, he gets stuck in a certain way of thinking. He 
has said more than once, “I am basically running a 70 million dollar corporation here in 
Northborough.” The budget may be similar, but what that comparison misses is that the town 
isn’t about money, it’s about people.


It’s our hometown, and it’s best to remember that the money comes from and is directly 
connected to the people who pay the taxes. All the money and all the work town staff, boards, 
and committees do is all for them, for the residents.


Residents have given Northborough the nickname of “The Town of No.” We would all benefit 
from being the town of “Sure, let’s think about that,” or even “Let’s give that a try.”


There is an MMA “Municipal Innovations” award. I would love to see Northborough and our 
downtown revitalization project aspire to being considered for an innovation award—not 
because of the award itself, but because of the teamwork and creativity it would require.


Page  of 5 6



Recognized Strengths 

• Financial Policy
• Strategic Planning
• Professionalism
• Dedication
• Professional acumen and excellence in municipal administration and finance.
• Hardworking, diligent, capable.
• Articulate in oral and written communications.
• Consistently sets and achieves meaningful goals, delivers quality results.
• Strong emphasis on data-driven decisions, proactive planning, sustainable practices.
• Thorough research, organization, and planning across all aspects of town government.
• Frames the issue, identifies options, makes well-reasoned recommendations.
• Readily understands and manages complex details across many issues and projects.
• Copes with uncertainty and finds solutions to unexpected adverse developments.
• Proactively identifies and mitigates risk in municipal operations and capital projects.
• Fosters constructive, collaborative relationships with and among boards and committees.
• Works effectively, constructively, and productively at the local, regional, and state levels.
• Acknowledged by Massachusetts Municipal Association, state agencies and organizations,

and peers as an expert in his field.

Opportunities for Improvement 

Continue the work to include residents and committees that are disconnected from the majority 
of Town operations.  Continue the open explanation and education on priorities and 
possibilities to achieve their concerns.


Continue the open explanations and education on priorities and possibilities.


John's primary disadvantage is that there is only one of him. He and his staff have produced 
excellent results over the past several years, but it is not reasonable to expect that level of 
performance can be sustained indefinitely, considering the size of the workload that continues 
to present itself. Much of that burden falls on John's shoulders. To whatever extent citizens 
desire an expansion of Town services and infrastructure, additional staffing -- and taxpayer 
funding -- will be needed to help meet that demand and allow John to focus his attention and 
skills on the most important, most urgent, and most impactful issues facing the Town. 


The things he can improve upon all involve dealing with people: building a culture of trust, not 
anxiety; welcoming ideas from residents as well as his staff and seriously considering those 
ideas; and trying to delegate and work with people instead of doing everything himself.


John will benefit from listening to the voices of the group and then accomplishing the goals 
that have been set forth. 


Page  of 6 6



RETURN TO AGENDA


	Mn 06.13.22.pdf
	BOARD OF SELECTMEN
	MEETING MINUTES – June 13, 2022
	Diane M. Wackell
	Executive Assistant to the
	Board of Selectmen
	1. June 13, 2022 Meeting Agenda
	2. April 25, 2022 Meeting Minutes
	3. May 23, 2022 Meeting Minutes
	4. Memorandum – Appointment of Police Sergeant and Officers
	5. Memorandum – Reappointment of Special Police Officers
	6. Information Packet – Board & Committee Appointments
	7. Information Packet – Renewal of NEDP MOU
	8. Information Packet – Town Administrator Review and Goals
	9. Memorandum – Public Comment and Packet Availability
	10. Cemetery Deeds

	Mn 06.16.22 ARPA.pdf
	BOARD OF SELECTMEN
	MEETING MINUTES – June 16, 2022
	Diane M. Wackell
	Executive Assistant to the
	Board of Selectmen
	1. June 16, 2022 Meeting Agenda




